



## Second Revision No. 6-NFPA 2001-2024 [ Chapter 2 ]

### Chapter 2 Referenced Publications

#### 2.1 General.

The documents or portions thereof listed in this chapter are referenced within this standard and shall be considered part of the requirements of this document.

#### 2.2 NFPA Publications.

National Fire Protection Association, 1 Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02169-7471.

NFPA 4, *Standard for Integrated Fire Protection and Life Safety System Testing*, 2024 edition.

NFPA 70<sup>®</sup>, *National Electrical Code*<sup>®</sup>, 2023 edition.

NFPA 72<sup>®</sup>, *National Fire Alarm and Signaling Code*<sup>®</sup>, 2025 edition.

#### 2.3 Other Publications.

##### 2.3.1 ANSI Publications.

American National Standards Institute, Inc., 25 West 43rd Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10036.

ANSI Z535.2, *Standard for Environmental and Facility Safety Signs*, 2018 2023 .

##### 2.3.2 ASME Publications.

American Society of Mechanical Engineers, Two Park Avenue, New York, NY 10016-5990.

ASME B1.20.1, *Standard on Pipe Threads, General Purpose, Inch*, 2013.

ASME B31.1, *Power Piping Code*, 2022.

*Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code*, 2023.

##### 2.3.3 ASTM Publications.

ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

ASTM A120-84, *Specification for Pipe, Steel, Black and Hot-Dipped (Galvanized) Welded and Seamless for Ordinary Uses*, 1984 (withdrawn 1987).

IEEE/ASTM SI10, *American National Standard for Metric Practice*, 2016.

##### 2.3.4 CGA Publications.

Compressed Gas Association, 8484 Westpark Drive, Suite 220, McLean, VA 22102.

CGA C-6, *Standard for Visual Inspection of Steel Compressed Gas Cylinders*, 2022.

##### 2.3.5 IEEE Publications.

IEEE Operations Center, 445 Hoes Lane, Piscataway, NJ 08854-4141.

IEEE C2, *National Electrical Safety Code*, 2022.

### 2.3.6 IMO Publications.

International Maritime Organization, 4, ~~Albert~~ Albert Embankment, London, SE1 7SR, United Kingdom.

IMO MSC/Circ. 848, *Revised Guidelines for the Approval of Equivalent Fixed Gas Fire-Extinguishing Systems as Referred to in SOLAS 74, for Machinery Spaces and Cargo Pump-Rooms*, 1998.

IMO MSC.1/~~Circ.1267~~ Circ. 1267, *Amendments to Revised Guidelines for the Approval of Equivalent Fixed Gas Fire-Extinguishing Systems, as Referred to in SOLAS 74, for Machinery Spaces and Cargo Pump-Rooms (MSC/Circ.848)*, 2008.

### 2.3.7 ISO Publications.

International Organization for Standardization, ISO Central Secretariat, BIBC II, Chemin de Blandonnet 8, CP 401, 1214 Vernier, Geneva, Switzerland.

ISO 7-1, *Pipe Threads Where Pressure-Tight Joints Are Made on the Threads — Part 1: Dimensions, Tolerances and Designation*, 1994 (R2020).

### 2.3.8 TC Publications.

Transport Canada, 330 Sparks Street, Ottawa, ON K1A 0N5, Canada.

TP 127 E, *Ship Safety Electrical Standards*, 2018.

### 2.3.9 UL Publications.

Underwriters Laboratories Inc., 333 Pfingsten Road, Northbrook, IL 60062-2096.

ANSI/CAN/UL/ULC 2127, *Inert Gas Clean Agent Extinguishing System Units*, ~~2024~~ 2024 .

ANSI/CAN/UL/ULC 2166, *Halocarbon Clean Agent Extinguishing System Units*, ~~2021~~ 2017 (R2021) .

### 2.3.10 ~~U.S. Government~~ US Government Publications.

~~U.S. Government~~ US Government Publishing Office, 732 North Capitol Street, NW, Washington, DC 20401.

OSHA, Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1910, Subpart S, “Electrical.”

~~U.S. Coast~~ US Coast Guard, Title 46, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 72, “Construction and Arrangement.”

~~U.S. Coast~~ US Coast Guard, Title 46, Code of Federal Regulations, Subchapter J, “Electrical Engineering.”

DOT Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 170–190, “Transportation.”

### 2.3.11 Other Publications.

*Merriam-Webster’s Collegiate Dictionary*, 11th edition, Merriam-Webster, Inc., Springfield, MA, 2020.

## 2.4 References for Extracts in Mandatory Sections.

NFPA 12, *Standard on Carbon Dioxide Extinguishing Systems*, ~~2022~~ 2025 edition.

## Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submission Date:** Thu May 16 14:18:34 EDT 2024

## Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** Reference Updates

**Response Message:** SR-6-NFPA 2001-2024



## Second Revision No. 1-NFPA 2001-2024 [ Section No. 4.4.1 ]

### 4.4.1

Before system cylinders are handled or moved, the following steps shall be taken:

- (1) ~~Cylinder outlets~~ Anti-recoil devices shall be ~~fitted with anti-recoil devices, installed on cylinder caps, or both,~~ outlets whenever the cylinder ~~outlet is not~~ outlets are not connected to the system pipe inlet.
- (2) Cylinder caps, where applicable, and anti-recoil devices shall be installed before removing cylinders from the retaining devices.
- (3) Actuators shall be disabled or removed before cylinders are removed from retaining bracketing devices .

### Supplemental Information

<u>File Name</u>	<u>Description</u>	<u>Approved</u>
2001_SR-1_4.4.1.docx		

### Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submittal Date:** Wed May 15 11:29:50 EDT 2024

### Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** The section was rewritten to clarify the intent of the section as follows:

Securing the cylinder caps prior to removing the cylinders from the retaining device shall provide additional safety margin for technicians working with the equipment. (1) was revised to only include anti-coil devices. (3) was updated to retaining devices to provide a more consistent terminology.

**Response Message:** SR-1-NFPA 2001-2024

[Public Comment No. 4-NFPA 2001-2023 \[Section No. 4.4.1\]](#)



## Second Revision No. 5-NFPA 2001-2024 [ New Section after 7.2.3.3 ]

### 7.2.3.4\*

The temperature of a protected volume in which inerting halocarbons are used shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's listed installation manual.

### A.7.2.3.4

Halocarbon agents have the potential to liquefy at low temperatures. Particularly in an inerting setting, protected enclosure temperature conditions outside of the manufacturer's approved temperature range can result in lower than required concentrations.

### Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submittal Date:** Thu May 16 14:00:32 EDT 2024

### Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** Manufacturers listing halocarbon agent systems for inerting should be able to accurately state at which temperatures the agent performs. Halocarbon agents are explicitly mentioned because low protected enclosure temperatures do not pose a risk for inert gas concentrations.

**Response Message:** SR-5-NFPA 2001-2024



## Second Revision No. 4-NFPA 2001-2024 [ Section No. 9.7.2 ]

### 9.7.2\*

For hazard areas ~~subject to fast-growth fires,~~ where the provision of a time delay would increase the threat to life and property, a time delay shall be permitted to be eliminated.

#### A.9.7.2

~~Hazards associated with fast-growth fires would include, but not be limited to, flammable liquid storage or transfer areas and aerosol filling areas. Examples of hazards where a time delay might be omitted are those subject to fast growth fires, such as ignitable liquid storage or handling, aerosol fill rooms, and automated paint spray booths. Certain dust collectors might also require the elimination of a time delay.~~

### 9.7.3

Where time delays are omitted, provisions shall be made to ensure that the clean agent system is locked out by a supervised system lockout valve any time personnel are present in the protected area or space.

## Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submittal Date:** Thu May 16 13:49:52 EDT 2024

## Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** The current text focused on fast growth fires and although fast growth fires are a reason to eliminate time delays there are other fires where rapid agent deployment is necessary. The fast-growth fires wording was moved to the appendix.

There are instances where the addition of a time delay will result in an unacceptable damage to equipment or processes so there must be a process to ensure personnel safety and allow for the omission of a time delay.

A supervised lockout valve is added because it is important that personnel not be exposed to dangerous levels of agent concentration. NFPA 12 also requires the use of a lockout valve in such circumstances.

**Response Message:** SR-4-NFPA 2001-2024

[Public Comment No. 7-NFPA 2001-2023 \[Section No. 9.7.2\]](#)



## Second Revision No. 2-NFPA 2001-2024 [ Section No. 11.3.4 ]

### 11.3.4\*

For inert gas clean agents, if a container shows a loss in pressure (adjusted for temperature) of more than 5 percent, it shall be refilled or replaced.

### 11.3.5

~~Where container pressure gauges are used to comply with 11.3.4, they shall be compared to a separate calibrated device at least annually.~~

## Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submission Date:** Wed May 15 13:16:27 EDT 2024

## Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** Pressure gauges used on inert gas systems are listed. Semiannual and annual inspections have shown that the listed gauge work as designed. Requiring annual verification of gauges accuracy introduces additional safety risks during maintenance and possibility of introducing leakage from the cylinder.

**Response Message:** SR-2-NFPA 2001-2024

[Public Comment No. 8-NFPA 2001-2023 \[Sections 11.3.4, 11.3.5\]](#)



## Second Revision No. 3-NFPA 2001-2024 [ Section No. A.3.3.10 ]

### A.3.3.10 Deep-Seated Fire.

A characteristic of this type of combustion is the slow rate of heat ~~losses~~ loss from the reaction zone. Thus, the fuel remains hot enough to exothermically react with oxygen, even though the rate of reaction, which is controlled by diffusion processes, is extremely slow. Deep-seated fires can continue to burn for many weeks, for example, in bales of cotton and jute and heaps of sawdust. A deep-seated fire ceases to burn only when either all the available oxygen or fuel has been consumed or the fuel surface is at too low a temperature to react.

Deep-seated fires are usually ~~are~~ extinguished by reducing the fuel ~~temperature, either directly by temperature either directly via the~~ application of a heat-absorbing medium, such as water, or by blanketing it with an inert gas. The medium slows the reaction rate to the point where heat generated by oxidation is less than heat ~~losses to~~ loss in the surroundings. This causes the temperature to fall below the level necessary for re-ignition after removal of the inert atmosphere.

### Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submittal Date:** Wed May 15 13:18:24 EDT 2024

### Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** The revision makes an editorial correction to the definition.

**Response Message:** SR-3-NFPA 2001-2024

[Public Comment No. 6-NFPA 2001-2023 \[Section No. A.3.3.10\]](#)



## Second Revision No. 7-NFPA 2001-2024 [ Chapter G ]

### Annex G Informational References

#### G.1 Referenced Publications.

The documents or portions thereof listed in this annex are referenced within the informational sections of this standard and are not part of the requirements of this document unless also listed in Chapter 2 for other reasons.

##### G.1.1 NFPA Publications.

National Fire Protection Association, 1 Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02169-7471.

NFPA 12A, *Standard on Halon 1301 Fire Extinguishing Systems*, 2025 edition.

NFPA 25, *Standard for the Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of Water-Based Fire Protection Systems*, 2023 edition.

NFPA 70<sup>®</sup>, *National Electrical Code*<sup>®</sup>, 2023 edition.

NFPA 72<sup>®</sup>, *National Fire Alarm and Signaling Code*<sup>®</sup>, 2025 edition.

NFPA 75, *Standard for the Fire Protection of Information Technology Equipment*, 2024 edition.

NFPA 77, *Recommended Practice on Static Electricity*, 2024 edition.

NFPA 90A, *Standard for the Installation of Air-Conditioning and Ventilating Systems*, 2024 edition.

NFPA 90B, *Standard for the Installation of Warm Air Heating and Air-Conditioning Systems*, 2024 edition.

##### G.1.2 Other Publications.

###### G.1.2.1 ACGIH Publications.

~~American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists, 3640 Park 42 Drive, Cincinnati, OH 45241.~~

~~2016 TLVs and BEIs (Threshold Limit Values and Biological Exposure Indices), 2020.~~

###### G.1.2.1 AIHA Publications.

American Industrial Hygiene Association, 3141 Fairview Park Drive, Suite 777, Falls Church, VA 22042.

*ERPG/WEEL Handbook*, 2020.

###### G.1.2.2 ASHRAE Publications.

ASHRAE, 180 Technology Parkway, Peachtree Corners, GA 30092.

ANSI/ASHRAE 34, *Designation and Safety Classification of Refrigerants*, 2022.

###### G.1.2.3 ASME Publications.

American Society of Mechanical Engineers, Two Park Avenue, New York, NY 10016-5990.

ASME B31.1, *Power Piping Code*, 2022.



**G.1.2.4** ASTM Publications.

ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

ASTM E176, *Standard Terminology of Fire Standards*, 2021a 2024 .

ASTM E177, *Standard Practice for Use of the Terms Precision and Bias in ASTM Test Methods*, 2020.

ASTM E456, *Standard Terminology Relating to Quality and Statistics*, 2013 (2022).

ASTM E691, *Standard Practice for Conducting an Interlaboratory Study to Determine the Precision of a Test Method*, 2022 2023 .

ASTM E779, *Standard Test Method for Determining Air Leakage Rate by Fan Pressurization*, 2019.

ASTM E1258, *Standard Test Method for Airflow Calibration of Fan Pressurization Devices*, 1988 (2018) 2023 .

ASTM E1354, *Standard Test Method for Heat and Visible Smoke Release Rates for Materials and Products Using an Oxygen Consumption Calorimeter*, 2022c 2023 .

ASTM E1827, *Standard Test Methods for Determining Airtightness of Buildings Using an Orifice Blower Door*, 2022.

ASTM F1387, *Standard Specification for Performance of Piping and Tubing Mechanically Attached Fittings*, 2019 M86 .

**G.1.2.5** CAN/CGSB Publications.

Canadian General Standards Board, L'Esplanade Laurier, 6th floor East Tower, 140 O'Connor Street, Ottawa, ON K1A 0R5, Canada.

CAN/CGSB-149.10-M86 -2019 , *Determination of the Airtightness of Building Envelopes by the Fan Depressurization Method*, 2019.

**G.1.2.6** CGA Publications.

Compressed Gas Association, 8484 Westpark Drive, Suite 220, McLean, VA 22102.

CGA C-6, *Standard for Visual Inspection of Steel Compressed Gas Cylinders*, 2019 2022 .

**G.1.2.7 FSSA Publications.**

Fire Suppression Systems Association, 3601 E. Joppa Road, Baltimore, MD 21234.  
www.fssa.net

~~FSSA *Design Guide for Use with Fire Protection Systems Inspection Forms* .~~

~~FSSA *Guide to Estimating Enclosure Pressure and Pressure Relief Vent Area for Applications Using Clean Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems* , 3rd edition.~~

~~FSSA *DCG-01, Application Guide Detection & Control for Fire Suppression Systems*, November 2010 1st edition .~~

~~FSSA *Design Guide for Use with IFG-01, Fire Protection Systems Inspection Forms Form Guidelines* , January 2012 1st edition .~~

~~FSSA *CAG-01, Guide to Clean Fire Extinguishing Agents and Their Use in Fixed Systems*, 1st edition, June 2017 .~~

~~FSSA *Guide to Estimating Enclosure Pressure and Pressure PRG-03, Pressure Relief Vent Area for Applications Using Clean Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems*, 3rd edition, October 2014 .~~

~~FSSA *PDH-03, Pipe Design Guide for Use with Special Hazard Fire Suppression Systems*, 2nd 3rd edition, 2011 .~~

~~FSSA *CSG-04, Test Guide for Use with Special Hazard Fire Suppression Systems Containers*, 4th edition, January 2017 .~~

~~FSSA White Paper, "Effect of Sound Waves on Data Storage Devices," Fire Suppression Systems Association, Baltimore, MD, 2018.~~

**G.1.2.8 HARC Publications.**

Halon Alternatives Research Corporation, 1001 19th Street North, Suite 1200, Arlington, VA 22209. www.harc.org

*HARC Code of Practice for Use of Recycled Halogenated Clean Agents*, 2015.

**G.1.2.9 IMO Publications.**

International Maritime Organization, 4 Albert Embankment, London, SE1 7SR, United Kingdom.

International Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea (SOLAS), 1974. (Including all amendments through 2011).

IMO MSC/Circ. 776, "Guidelines for the Approval of Equivalent Fixed Gas Fire-Extinguishing Systems," as referred to in SOLAS 74 for Machinery Spaces and Cargo Pump-Rooms, 42 Dec December 12, 1996.

**G.1.2.10 ISO Publications.**

International Organization for Standardization, ISO Central Secretariat, BIBC II, Chemin de Blandonnet 8, CP 401, 1214 Vernier, Geneva, Switzerland.

ISO 14520-1, *Gaseous fire-extinguishing systems — Physical properties and system design — Part 1: General requirements*, 2015 2023 .

**G.1.2.11 MSS Publications.**

Manufacturer's Standardization Society (MSS) of the Valve and Fittings Industry, 127 Park St. NE, Vienna, VA 22180-4602.

ANSI/MSS SP-58, *Pipe Hangers and Supports — Materials, Design, Manufacture, Selection, Application, and Installation*, 2018.

MSS SP-127, *Bracing for Piping Systems: Seismic — Wind — Dynamic Design, Selection, and Application*, 2014a.

**G.1.2.12** SFPE Publications.

Society of Fire Protection Engineers, 9711 Washingtonian Blvd., Suite 380, Gaithersburg, MD 20878.

Hurley, Morgan (~~editors~~ editor ), *SFPE Handbook of Fire Protection Engineering*, 5th edition, 2016 .

**G.1.2.13** UL Publications.

Underwriters Laboratories Inc., 333 Pfingsten Road, Northbrook, IL ~~60062-2096~~ 60062-2096 .

ANSI/CAN/UL/ULC ~~2127~~ ULC 2127 , *Inert Gas Clean Agent Extinguishing System Units*, 2021 2024 .

ANSI/CAN/UL/ULC ~~2166~~ ULC 2166 , *Halocarbon Clean Agent Extinguishing System Units*, 2021 2017 (R2021) .

**G.1.2.14** ~~U.S. Government~~ US Government Publications.

~~U.S. Government~~ US Government Publishing Office, 732 North Capitol Street, NW, Washington, DC 20401.

DOT, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations.

Title 57, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1984, *Federal Register*, "EPA SNAP Program." January 16, 1992. [<https://www.epa.gov/snap/vol-57-no-11-thursday-january-16-1992-p-1984-proposed-rule>]

~~U.S. Coast~~ US Coast Guard, Title 46, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 111.59, Subchapter J, "Electrical Engineering." -

**G.1.3** Other References.

- Back, G.G., C.L. Beyler, P.J. DiNunno, M. Peatross, "Draft Report: Full-Scale Machinery Space Testing of Gaseous Halon Alternatives," USCG R&D Center, Groton, CT, 1994.
- Brockway, J.C., "Recent Findings on Thermal Decomposition Products of Clean Extinguishing Agents," 3M Report presented at NFPA 2001 Committee Meeting, Ft. Lauderdale, FL, Sept. 19–22, 1994.
- Cholin, R.R., "Testing the Performance of Halon 1301 on Real Computer Installations," *Fire Journal*, September 1972.
- Coll, J.P., "Inerting Characteristics of Halon 1301 and 1211 Using Various Combustibles," Fenwal CRC Report No. PSR-661, August 16, 1976.
- Cotton, F.A. and G. Wilkinson, *Advanced Inorganic Chemistry*, p. 364, John Wiley & Sons, New York, 1980.
- Dalby, W., "Evaluation of the toxicity of hydrogen fluoride at short exposure times," Stonybrook Laboratories, Inc., 311 Pennington-Rocky Hill Road, Pennington, NJ, sponsored by the Petroleum Environmental Research Forum (PERF), PERF Project No. 92–90, 1996.
- Dalzell, W.G., "A Determination of the Flammability Envelope of Four Ternary Fuel-Air-Halon 1301 Systems," Fenwal CRC Report No. PSR-624, October 7, 1975.
- Dierdorf, D.S., T.A. Moore, S.R. Skaggs, "Decomposition Product Analysis During Intermediate-Scale (645 ft<sup>3</sup>) and Laboratory-Scale (6.18 ft<sup>3</sup>) Testing of NFPA 2001 Agents," University of New Mexico, Albuquerque, NM, 1993.
- DiNunno, P.J., "Engineering Evaluation and Comparison of Halon Alternatives and Replacements," International CFC & Halon Alternatives Conference, Washington, DC, 1993.
- DiNunno, P.J., et al., "Modeling of the Flow Properties and Discharge of Halon Replacement Agents," *Process Safety Progress*, Vol. 14, No. 1, January 1995.
- Dumayas, W.A., "Effect of HF Exposure on PC Multifunction Cards," Senior Research Project, Department of Fire Protection Engineering, University of Maryland, College Park, MD, 1992.
- DuPont Company, "Acute inhalation of hydrogen fluoride in rats," Haskell Laboratory Report HLR, pp. 365–90, 1990.
- Elliot, D.G., et al., "Flow of Nitrogen-Pressurized Halon 1301 in Fire Extinguishing Systems," *JPL Publication 84-62*, Jet Propulsion Laboratory, Pasadena, CA, November 1984.
- Eurofeu, "Fixed Extinguishing Installation Section, Guidance paper on Impact of noise on Computer hard drives," October 2012.
- FE-25™, *Fire Extinguishing Agent — Properties, Uses, Storage, and Handling*, The Chemours Company, Wilmington, DE, June 2017.
- Fernandez, R., "DuPont's Alternatives to Halon 1301 and 1211, Recent Findings," Proceedings of the Halon Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, April 30–May 1, 1991.
- FM-200™, *Fire Extinguishing Agent — Properties, Uses, Storage, and Handling*, The Chemours Company, Wilmington, DE, June 2017.
- FM Approvals Contract Test Report, "Comparative cup burner Class B extinguishment tests of inert gas fire extinguishing agents," Project 3016214, January 6, 2005.
- Ford, C.L., *Halon 1301 Computer Fire Test Program: Interim Report*, 1972.
- Forsell, E. and P.J. DiNunno, *Hazard Assessment of Thermal Decomposition Products of FM-200™ in Electronics and Data Processing Facilities*, Hughes Associates, 1995.
- Forsell, et al., "Draft Report: Performance of FM-200 on Typical Class A Computer Room Fuel Packages," Hughes Associates, Inc., Columbia, MD, October 1994.
- Grosshandler, W.L. (editor), *Nuisance Alarms in Aircraft Cargo Areas and Critical Telecommunications Systems: Proceedings of the Third NIST Fire Detector Workshop*, NISTIR 6146, National Institute of Standards and Technology, Gaithersburg, MD, March 1998.
- HT Research Institute, 1973.

Hainsworth, R.F. and Howard S. Hammel, "Cup Burner Values For DuPont FE-13 in Accordance with NFPA 2001-2000 and ISO 14520-1," E.I. DuPont de Nemours & Co. Inc., Chestnut Run Plaza 711/1214A, Wilmington, DE, March 12, 2003.

Hanauska, C., "Perfluorocarbons as Halon Replacement Candidates," Proceedings of the Halon Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, April 30–May 1, 1991.

*Handbook of Chemistry and Physics*, 83rd ed., D. R. Lide (editor), Ch. 14, p. 19, "U.S. US Standard Atmosphere (1976)," CRC Press LLC, 2002.

Harrison, M.A. and Mark Robin, Report HAI-8715-A, "Cup Burner Testing of Heptane with HFC-125 and HFC-236fa in Accordance With ISO 14520-1," Hughes Associates, West Lafayette, IN, February 14, 2001.

Hesson, J.C., "Pressure Drop for Two Phase Carbon Dioxide Flowing in Pipe Lines," Master of Science Thesis in CH.E. Illinois Institute of Technology, January 1953.

Hughes Associates, Inc., *Hazard Assessment of Thermal Decomposition Products of FM-200™ in Electronics and Data Processing Facilities*, 1995.

Largent, E.J., "The metabolism of fluorides in man," *Arch Ind. Health*, 21:318–323, 1960.

Latorre, Juan Jose Merlo, "Hard Drive Damage," *Industrial Fire Journal*, Autumn 2013, issue no.93, pp 12–14.

Linteris, G.T., "Suppression of Cup-Burner Flames by Super-Effective Chemical Inhibitors and Inert Compounds," Proceedings of the Halon Options Technical Working Conference, pp. 187–196, Albuquerque, NM, April 24–26, 2001.

Machle, W., and K.R. Kitzmiller, "The effects of the inhalation of hydrogen fluoride. II. The response following exposure to low concentrations," *J. Ind. Hyg. Toxicol*, 17:223–229, 1935.

Machle, W., F. Tharnann, K.R. Kitzmiller, and J. Cholak, "The effects of the inhalation of hydrogen fluoride. I. The response following exposure to high concentrations," *J. Ind. Hyg. Toxicol*, 16:129–45, 1934.

Maranian, B., Memo to the NFPA 2001 Technical Committee, "Re: Section 5/1/2 Second Draft Public Comment #23," U.S. US Environmental Protection Agency, October 6, 2020.

Meacham, B.J., *Fire Technology*, First Quarter, p. 35, 1993.

Meldrum, M., *Toxicology of Substances in Relation to Major Hazards: Hydrogen Fluoride*, Health and Safety Executive (HSE) Information Centre, Sheffield S37HQ, England, 1993.

Moore, T.A., D.S. Dierdorf, and S.R. Skaggs, "Intermediate-Scale (645 ft<sup>3</sup>) Fire Suppression Evaluation of NFPA 2001 Agents," Halons Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 1993.

Muller, A., CNPP Test Report YN 02 6321, "Acknowledgement of Cup Burner Measurements for NOVEC™ 1230," St Marcel, France, September 13, 2002.

Naval Research Laboratory Report Ser 6180/0049.2, "Agent Concentration Inhomogeneities in Real Scale Halon Replacement," 26 January 1995.

Peatross, M.J., and E.W. Forssell, "A Comparison of Thermal Decomposition Product Testing of Halon 1301 Alternative Agents," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 1996.

Pedley, M.D., *Corrosion of Typical Orbiter Electronic Components Exposed to Halon 1301 Pyrolysis Products*, NASA TR-339-001, 1995.

Preece, S., P. Mackay, and A. Chatlaway, "The Cup Burner Method — A Parametric Analysis of the Factors Influencing the Reported Extinguishing Concentrations of Inert Gases," Proceedings of the Halon Options Technical Working Conference, April 24–26, Albuquerque, NM, 2001.

Purser, D.A., "The Performance of Fire Retarded Materials in Relation to Toxicity, Toxic Hazard and Toxic Risk," Society of Chemical Industry Fire Chemistry Discussion Group, University of Lancaster, UK, 1998.

- Rawson, Brian P. and Kent C. Green, "Inert Gas Data Center Fire Protection and Hard Disk Drive Damage," *Data Center Journal*, August 27, 2012.
- Robin, M.L., "Evaluation of Halon Alternatives," p. 16, Proceedings of the Halon Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM April 30–May 1, 1991.
- Sandahl, D., A. Elder, and A. Barnard, "Impact of Sound on Computer Hard Disk Drives and Risk Mitigation Measures," Johnson Controls Form No. T-2016367-01, 2018.
- Sax, N.I., *Dangerous Properties of Industrial Materials*, 6th edition, Van Nostrand Reinhold, New York, 1984.
- Schmeer, Justin S., "Methane and Propane Inerting Concentrations of FK-5-1-12," Memorandum to Paul E. Rivers, 3M Performance Materials Division, June 13, 2003.
- Senecal, J.A., "Agent Inerting Concentrations for Fuel-Air Systems," Fenwal Safety Systems CRC Technical Note No. 361, May 27, 1992.
- Senecal, J.A., "Flame Extinguishing by Inert Gases: Theoretical and Experimental Analysis," Proceedings of the 2004 Technical Meeting of the Central States Section of the Combustion Institute, Austin, TX, March 21–22, 2004.
- Senecal, J.A., "Flame Extinguishing in the Cup-Burner by Inert Gases," *Fire Safety Journal*, Vol. 40, Issue 6, pp. 579–591, September 2005.
- Senecal, J.A., "Standardizing the Measurement of Minimum Extinguishing Concentrations of Gaseous Agents," *Fire Technology*, Vol. 44, No. 3, pp. 207–220, September 2008.
- Sheinson, R.S., et al., *J. Fire & Flamm.*, 12, 229, 1981.
- Sheinson, R.S., "Halon Alternatives — Compartment Total Flooding Testing," Proceedings of the International Conference on CFC and Halon Alternatives, p. 629, Baltimore, MD, December 3–5, 1991.
- Sheinson, R.S., et al., "Halon 1301 Total Flooding Fire Testing, Intermediate Scale," *Proceedings of the Halon Alternatives Technical Working Conference*, Albuquerque, NM May 3–5, 1994.
- Sheinson, R.S., et al., "Large Scale (840 m<sup>3</sup>) Total Flooding Fire Extinguishment Results," Proceedings of the Halon Alternatives Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM May 1995.
- Siemens White Paper, "Potential damage to hard disk drives during discharges of dry extinguishing systems," Siemens, September 2012.
- Skaggs, S.R. and T. Moore, "Toxicological Properties of Halon Replacements," 208th ACS National Meeting, Washington, DC, 1994.
- Skaggs, S.R. and T. Moore, "Toxicology of Halogenated Halon Substitutes," Fire Safety Without Halon Conference, Zurich, Switzerland, September 1994.
- Takahashi, F., G.T. Linteris, and V.R. Katta, "Suppression of Cup-Burner Flames," Fourth International Symposium on Scale Modeling (ISSM-IV). Cleveland, OH, September 17–19, 2003.
- Tamanini, F., "Determination of Inerting Requirements for Methane/Air and Propane/Air Mixtures by an Ansul Inerting Mixture of Argon, Carbon Dioxide and Nitrogen," Factory Mutual Research, August 24, 1992.
- Wysocki, T.J., "Single Point Flow Calculations for Liquefied Compressed Gas Fire Extinguishing Agents," Proceedings of the Halon Options Technical Working Conference Proceedings, Albuquerque, NM, 1996.
- Wysocki, T.J. and B.C. Christensen, "Inert Gas Fire Suppression Systems Using IG541 (Inergen) Solving the Hydraulic Calculation Problem," Proceedings of the Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 1996.
- Zabetakis, Michael G., "Flammability Characteristics of Combustible Gases and Vapors," Bulletin 627, U.S. US Department of the Interior, Bureau of Mines, 1965.

## **G.2** Informational References.

The following documents or portions thereof are listed here as informational resources only. They are not a part of the requirements of this document.

### **G.2.1** ASTM Publications.

ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, ~~PO P.O.~~ Box C700, West Conshohocken ~~Conshohocken~~, PA, 19428-2959 PA 19428-2959.

ASTM A53/A53M, *Standard Specification for Pipe, Steel, Black and Hot-Dipped, Zinc-Coated, Welded and Seamless*, 2022 2024.

ASTM D6064, *Standard Specification for HFC-227ea, 1,1,1,2,3,3,3-Heptafluoropropane (CF<sub>3</sub>CHF<sub>2</sub>CF<sub>3</sub>)*, 2015, reapproved 2022.

ASTM D6126/D6126M, *Standard Specification for HFC-23 (Trifluoromethane, CHF<sub>3</sub>)*, 2021.

ASTM D6231/D6231M, *Standard Specification for HFC-125 (Pentafluoroethane, C<sub>2</sub>HF<sub>5</sub>)*, 2021.

ASTM D6541, *Standard Specification for HFC-236fa, 1,1,1,3,3,3-Hexafluoropropane, (CF<sub>3</sub>CH<sub>2</sub>CF<sub>3</sub>)*, 2021.

ASTM D7327, *Standard Specification for HFC Blend B (CH<sub>2</sub>FCF<sub>3</sub>, CHF<sub>2</sub>CF<sub>3</sub>, and CO<sub>2</sub>)*, 2021.

### **G.2.2** FM Publications.

FM Global, 270 Central Avenue, Johnston, RI 02919.

FM Approvals 5600, *Approval Examination Standard for Clean Agent Extinguishing Systems*, 2021 2023.



**G.2.3 Other Publications.**

- Bayless, H., and R. Niemann, "Update on the Evaluation of Selected NFPA 2001 Agents for Suppressing Class 'C' Energized Fires, Proceedings, Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 1998, pp. 293–294.
- Bengtson, G., et al., "Update on the Evaluation of Selected NFPA 2001 Agents for Suppressing Class C Energized Fires Featuring C6 F-Ketone," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, April 30–May 2, 2002, Albuquerque, NM.
- Bengtson, G., and R. Niemann, "Update on the Evaluation of Selected NFPA 2001 Agents for Suppressing Class C Energized Fires," Proceedings, Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 24–26, 2005.
- Braun, E., et al., "Determination of Suppression Concentration for Clean Agents Exposed to a Continuously Energized Heated Metal Surface," May 6–9, 1997, 1997 Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM.
- DiNenno, P. J., and E. K. Budnick, "A Review of Discharge Testing of Halon 1301 Total Flooding Systems," National Fire Protection Research Foundation, Quincy, MA, 1988.
- DiNenno, P. J., and E. W. Forssell, et al., "Evaluation of Halon 1301 Test Gas Simulants," *Fire Technology*, 25 (1), 1989.
- DiNenno, P. J., and E. W. Forssell, et al., "Hydraulic Performance Tests of Halon 1301 Test Gas Simulants," *Fire Technology*, 26 (2), pp. 121–140, May 1990.
- Driscoll, M., and P. Rivers, "Clean Extinguishing Agents and Continuously Energized Circuits," NIST Conference, Gaithersburg, MD, October 1996.
- Driscoll, M., and P. Rivers, "Clean Extinguishing Agents and Continuously Energized Circuits: Recent Findings," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 6–8, 1997.
- EPA, *Inventory of U.S. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Sinks: 1990–2007, 2009. Federal Register*, Vol. 59, Page 13044, "EPA SNAP Program."
- Fellows, B. R., R. G. Richard, and I. R. Shankland, "Electrical Characterization of Alternative Refrigerants," XVIII International Congress of Refrigeration, August 10–17, 1991.
- Ferreira, M. J., C. P. Hanauska, and M. T. Pike, "Thermal Decomposition Products Results Utilizing PFC-410 (3M Brand PFC 410 Clean Extinguishing Agent)," Halon Alternatives Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 12–14, 1992.
- Ferreira, M. J., J. A. Pignato, and M. T. Pike, "An Update on Thermal Decomposition Product Results Utilizing PFC-410," International CFC and Halon Alternative Conference, Washington, DC, October 1, 1992.
- Flamm, J., et al., "Continuing the Examination and Comparison of Existing Halon Alternatives in Preventing Reignition on Continuously Energized Fires," *Proceedings*, Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 2005.
- Hirt, C. W., and N. C. Romero, "Application of a Drift-Flux Model to Flashing in Straight Pipes," Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Los Alamos, NM, 1976.
- Kelly, A., and P. Rivers, Clean Agents Concentration Requirements for Continuously Energized Fires, NIST Conference, Gaithersburg, MD, August 1997.
- Lambertsen, C. J., "Research Bases for Improvements of Human Tolerance to Hypoxic Atmospheres in Fire Prevention and Extinguishment," Institute for Environmental Medicine, University of Pennsylvania, October 30, 1992.
- Lambertsen, C. J., "Short Duration Inergen Exposures, Relative to Cardiovascular or Pulmonary Abnormality," Institute for Environmental Medicine, University of Pennsylvania, February 1, 1993.
- McKenna, L.A., et al., "Extinguishment Tests of Continuously Energized Class C Fires," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 12–14, 1998.
- Nicholas, J. S., and S. W. Hansen, "Summary of the Physiology of Inergen," Ansul Fire Protection, April 1, 1993.

Niemann, R., H. Bayless, and C. Craft, "Evaluation of Selected NFPA 2001 Agents for Suppressing Class 'C' Energized Fires," *Proceedings*, pp. 399–412, Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 1996.

Niemann, R., and H. Bayless, "Update on the Evaluation of Selected NFPA 2001 Agents for Suppressing Class C Energized Fires," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 12–14, 1998.

Robin, M. L., "Halon Alternatives: Recent Technical Progress," Halon Alternatives Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 12–14, 1992.

Skaggs, S. R., R. E. Tapscott, and T. A. Moore, "Technical Assessment for the SNAP Program," Halon Alternatives Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, May 12–14, 1992.

Smith, D., and P. Rivers, "Effectiveness of Clean Agents on Burning Polymeric Materials Subjected to an External Energy Source," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, April 27–29, 1999.

Smith, D., et al., "Energized Fire Performance of Clean Agents: Recent Developments," November 1997.

Smith, D. M., et al., "Examination and Comparison of Existing Halon Alternatives and New Sustainable Clean Agent Technology in Suppressing Continuously Energized Fires," Halon Options Technical Working Conference, Albuquerque, NM, 2001.

Steckler, K., and W. Grosshandler, "Clean Agent Performance in Fires Exposed to an External Energy Source," November 1998.

United Nations Environment Programme, Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer — Final Act 1987, UNEP/RONA, Room DCZ-0803, United Nations, New York, NY, 10017.

**G.3** References for Extracts in Informational Sections. (Reserved.)

## Submitter Information Verification

**Committee:** GFE-AAA

**Submittal Date:** Thu May 16 14:20:59 EDT 2024

## Committee Statement

**Committee Statement:** Reference update

**Response Message:** SR-7-NFPA 2001-2024